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CHAIR CARROLL: .. . (gavel). . . This Land Use Committee meeting of October 16, 2013 is now in
session. I am Councilmember Robert Carroll, Chair of the Land Use Committee. May I please
request, first of all, that anybody disable any cellphones or anything else that makes noise out
there. We have with us, Members, this morning Vice-Chair of the Committee, Don Guzman -VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: --Chair of the Council, Ms. Baisa -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: --Member Stacy Crivello-COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: --and Donald Couch. Absent...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Not absent. Excused at this time is Elle Cochran, Riki Hokama, Mike White, and
Mr. Victorino, who will be joining us later. Department of Corporation Counsel, Michael
Hopper, Deputy Corporation Counsel. Executive Branch representatives, we have Paul Fasi,
Department of Planning. We have several others. Rowena Dagdag-Andaya, Deputy Director of
Public Works, Planner Kurt Wollenhaupt, for LU-13, and the Chair just received word this
morning that the State DOT will not be sending a representative. And Members Cochran and
White are now with us, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Aloha, Chair
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CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Applicants' representatives, we have Vince Bagoyo of Bagoyo
Development and Consulting Group, Charles Jencks, Owner's Representative, Pacific Rim Land
Company, Stacy Otomo, Otomo Engineering, Phillip Rowell, Phillip Rowell and Associates,
Erik Fredericksen, Xamanek Research, LLC., Tom Nance, Tom Nance Water Resource
Engineering, and Greg Garneau, Esq., Carlsmith and Ball LLP. For LU-13, we will have Dan
Martin and Amy Wisthoff-Martin and Jay Wistoff. Committee Staff, we have Clarita Balala and
Carla Nakata, our Legislative Attorney. Today, we have three Items on our Agenda for
consideration, LU-14, Community Plan Amendment and Change in Zoning for the Proposed
Waiko Baseyard Light Industrial 41-Lot Subdivision Project Located at East Waiko Road
(Wailulcu), Conditional Permit, LU-13, Conditional Permit for Amy Wisthoff-Martin and Dan
Martin to Host and Conduct Weddings at an Approved Bed and Breakfast at 138 Awaiku Street
(Lahaina), and LU-15, Unfulfilled Conditions of Zoning and Annual Compliance Reports. We
will now accept public testimony. Ms. Nakata?
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, the first person registered to testify is Roderick Fong. He'll be testifying on
Item LU-14.
• .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONE . .
MR. FONG: Mr. Chairman and Members of the Council, my name is Roderick Fong and I'm a member
of the owners of the property and also have been leasing a portion of this property since 1984
from the former owner, A&B Properties. I'm just here to give a brief history of this project and
it started in the late 1950s. Our company, Fong Construction Company, was the first business to
operate along Dairy Road, where it is currently used as Ford Motor Company's Repair and
Service facility across from the Maui Marketplace. We acquired additional baseyard space
nearby where the current Kmart is located and we were asked to vacate that four-acre location in
the 1980s and asked, and we were asked if we'd consider relocating along Waiko Road in
Waikapu. We have been at that location since that time under the County's Special Use Permit
to use the property as a construction baseyard. We asked to purchase that property several times
to convert the Special Use Permitting to the proper M-1 Zoning. The owner did not want to sell
that property because there were several other tenants located on the property. They did agree to
sell the adjacent undeveloped 23 acre consolidated baseyard property in the early 2000s. This
property has been developed into a successful 35 acre industrial lot subdivision that attracted
many existing local business to own their own commercial property. We recently asked again to
purchase this property when we renewed our four-acre Special Use Permit extension and were
given the go-ahead to buy the property. This project is an expansion of that consolidated
baseyard industrial property and will bring much needed services and goods to the area now and
in the future. Thank you for giving me this opportunity to speak in behalf of this project and feel
free to ask me any questions.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
MR. FONG: Thank you.
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CHAIR CARROLL: And we have Mr. Victorino with us.
COLTNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, I am now going to ask if we have anybody giving testimony at one of
our remote sites. Hana, do you have anyone? Identify yourself and do you have anyone to give
testimony today?
MS. LONO: Good afternoon, Chair. This is Dawn Lono at the Ham Office and I have no one waiting
to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Molokai Office, please identify yourself and do you have anyone
giving testimony today?
MS. ALCON: Good afternoon, Chair. This is Ella Alcon on Molokai and there is no one here waiting
to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Lanai Office, please identify yourself and do you have anyone
waiting to give testimony today?
MS. FERNANDEZ: Good afternoon, Chair. This is Denise Fernandez on Lanai and there is no one
waiting to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Nakata?
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, the next testifier is Randy Piltz. He will be testifying on Item LU-14.
MR. PILTZ: Good afternoon, Mr. Chair, Council members. My name is Randy Piltz and I reside at 376
West Waiko Road. I am speaking this afternoon on behalf of our family relationship with the
Fong family. My dad and his dad were in construction together. Before coming to the County, I
was in the construction industry and also did business with the Fong Construction Company. I
am, I live in Waikapu and I feel that a project like this coming into our area will not hurt
anything Waiko Road has been used as an industrial area for many years. The Apana facility
was there many, many years and the Fong first subdivision industrial use was put in there several
years ago. Knowing that industrial properties on the island of Maui is very rare, and if we intend
to help our industry grow, provide jobs, we need a subdivision like this so that it can provide
more space for other opportunities to occur. So I ask that each and every one of you consider
that as a positive for us in Maui, in Waikapu, and in Maui County. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Is there
anyone else in the gallery that wishes to give testimony at this time, please come forward?
Seeing none, Hana Office, do you have anyone waiting to give testimony?
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MS. LONO: The Ham Office has no one waiting to testify, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Molokai Office, is there anyone waiting to give testimony.
MS. ALCON: There's no one here on Molokai waiting to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: And Lanai Office, do you have anyone waiting to give testimony?
MS. FERNANDEZ: There is no one waiting to testify on Lanai.
CHAIR CARROLL: If there's no objection, we will close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: Public testimony is now closed.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY....

ITEM NO. 14: COMMUNITY PLAN AMENDMENT AND CHANGE IN ZONING
FOR THE PROPOSED WAIKO BASEYARD LIGHT INDUSTRIAL 41LOT SUBDIVISION PROJECT LOCATED AT EAST WAIKO ROAD
(WAILUKU) (CC 13-263)
CHAIR CARROLL: We shall now hear LU-14, Community Plan Amendment and Change in Zoning
for the Proposed Waiko Baseyard Light Industrial 41-Lot Subdivision Project Located at East
Waiko Road, Wailuku. The Committee is in receipt of the following: County
Communication 13-263, from the Planning Director, transmitting the following, a proposed bill
to grant a request from Vince Bagoyo of Bagoyo Development Consulting Group, LLC, on
behalf of Waiko Industrial Investment, LLC, for a Community Plan Amendment from
Agricultural to Light Industrial to facilitate development of the proposed Waiko Baseyard Light
Industrial Subdivision Project, consisting of 41 lots ("project") on approximately 31.2 acres,
located at East Waiko Road, Wailuku, Maui, Hawaii, TMK: (2) 3-8-007:102; and a proposed bill
entitled A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE TO CHANGE ZONING FROM AGRICULTURAL
DISTRICT TO M-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT (CONDITIONAL ZONING) FOR
PROPERTY SITUATED AT WAILUKU, MAUI, HAWAII, TAX MAP KEY
NUMBER (2) 3-8-007:102. The purpose of the proposed bill is to grant a Change in Zoning
from Agricultural District to M-1 Light Industrial District (Conditional Zoning) to facilitate the
development of the proposed property. Correspondence dated September 3, 2013, from the
Department of Corporation Counsel, transmitting a revised proposed bill entitled A BILL FOR
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE WAILUKU-KAHULUI COMMUNITY PLAN AND
LAND USE MAP FROM AGRICULTURAL TO LIGHT INDUSTRIAL FOR PROPERTY
SITUATED AT WAILUKU, MAUI, HAWAII, TAX MAP KEY NUMBER (2) 3-8-007:102.
The revised proposed bill incorporates nonsubstantive revisions. Members, we will receive a
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PowerPoint presentation today from Vince Bagoyo. This Committee will be in recess for
two minutes while we set up the screen. We stand in recess. . . . (gavel).. .

RECESS:

1:44 p.m.

RECONVENE: 1:46 p.m.
CHAIR CARROLL: . . . (gavel). . . This Land Use Committee meeting of October 16 th is now back in
session. Mr. Bagoyo? One moment while we're having some temporary technical difficulties.
MR. BAGOYO: . . .(PowerPoint Presentation). . . Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman and Members of the
Land Use Committee. My name is Vince Bagoyo and I am Lead Consultant for this project. I
also have with me a representative from the owners, Charlie Jencks, and Mr. Roderick Fong, and
also we have several of our technical consultants are here as well this afternoon. The project
name is Waiko Light Industrial Project and the applicant is Waiko Industrial Investments, LLC.
The project is located on East Waiko Road, TMK 3-8-007:102. The total acreage is 31.222
acres. The current use is four acres is gonna be used as a construction equipment and material
storage. That's only be used by Fong Construction under Special Use and Conditional Permits,
and the rest of the parcels currently pasture land and most are fallow land. This is the location
map. It's, the project is centrally located within the Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan,
specifically in Waikapu. The current land use designations of this property is currently State
Land Use Urban. We just received the Urban Boundary Amendment several months ago and it's
a Community Plan Ag, County Zoning Ag, and it's within the Urban Growth Boundary of the
Maui Island Plan. This is the regional map, just for your orientation. Kuihelani Highway is
located right here, which is immediately east of the project site and this is the Honoapiilani
Highway. It's just about a little over a half a mile west of the project site. The proposed
subdivision is for 41 lots, including roadways and three lots for other uses for the project for
roadways and the proposed lot sites is ranging from 10,000 square feet to 78,000 square feet with
one 8.5-acre lot on the makai side of the property. The proposed uses is light industrial uses,
including commercial retail use, which is consistent with the permitted uses in Chapter 19.24 of
the Maui County Code. This is the conceptual subdivision plan. It's kind of two separate areas.
The property encompasses.. .this is the 8.5 acres and there's about 60 foot right of way here and
then this total area here. What the owner is proposing to do is both most of the light industrial
uses in this area and the commercial retail uses, it will be on this area and we're looking at about
100,000 square feet of leasable area within this 8.5 acres. We are requesting for your
considerations a Community Plan Amendment from Ag to Light Industrial and a Change in
Zoning from Agriculture to M-1 Light Industrial. The Maui Planning Commission accepted the
final Environmental Assessment and issued its findings of no significant impact in its
July 10, 2012 meeting and the FEA FONSI determination was published on August 8, 2012 and
no public comments received. And finally, the Maui Planning Commission in its May 14 th
meeting unanimously approved both of our requests, which is the Community Plan Amendment
and the Change in Zoning. During that meeting with the Planning Commission, there were no
testimony in opposition to this project and we have received several testimonies in support of the
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project. And that's all I have, Mr. Chairman, and again we're here if you have any questions.
We have the technical consultants are here also. Thank you so much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Bagoyo. This Land Use Committee will stand in recess for two
minutes. . . (gavel). . .

RECESS:

1:52 p.m.

RECONVENE: 1:54 p.m.
CHAIR CARROLL: . . . (gavel). . . Land Use Committee meeting of October 16, 2013 is now back in
session. Planning Department, do you have any statement? Oh, and Mr. Spence is with us now.
Mr. Spence?
MR. SPENCE: Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman. Not a whole lot. The project is pretty straight forward.
It has support, you know, within the community. It's, this area has been long used for light
industrial uses and it, you know, so it, we definitely support it. I would note at the Land Use
Commission and maybe this will come out a little bit more in the discussion, Land Use
Commission there was, it was approved without, you know, any controversy. The, and subject to
like 26 conditions. At some point, we may want to, you may want to ask the applicant about
those conditions. They're pretty extensive and at some point this Committee may wish to
consider not having any conditions on the zoning at all because it's really covered with, by the
State District Boundary Amendment. The Planning Department has recommended, or actually
the Planning Commission has recommended two conditions, one, that the developer submit five
copies of a preliminary compliance report complying with the conditions of zoning, the second
one, it's.. .looking at them now and sort of six months after the public hearing it appears a little
bit different to me. So you have a compliance report. The only other condition would be that the
project be in substantial compliance with the use, with the representations made to the Planning
Commission on May 14 th . I'm thinking, and maybe we can just, maybe we should talk about the
proposed conditions later, but we may wish to consider removing both of those. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Questions for the Planning Department? Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And my question to you, Mr. Spence, is you wish to
remove these conditions because? I mean, just tell us what the rationale is so that -MR. SPENCE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --you know, we can make a logical decision. I don't see a major
problem one way or the other but go ahead.
MR. SPENCE: Okay. The, if you look at Number 2, the proposed condition is that the project should
be in substantial compliance and use as presented to the Planning Commission on May 14, 2013.
If we go with that as a condition on the zoning, that's not a burden on the applicant whatsoever
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but it places some burden on administering this zoning because it means with every building
permit that gets issued, the Planning Department has to go back and read the minutes of the
Planning Commission meeting and say okay, is this in accordance with what was represented to
the Commission or not? And we make a subjective call on yes it is or no it isn't. So that in, that
the Preliminary Compliance Report, or the Preliminary Report addressing the developer's
compliance with the conditions of zoning, well there's only one other condition of zoning. That,
and they're basically going to write us a report and say yeah, we're in substantial compliance.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. SPENCE: And it's up to you, Planning Director, to review building permits against the
representations made to the Planning Commission.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, thank you for that explanation. The other question I had for
you is the fact that the roadway fronting Waiko Road, especially starting from Waiale and going
out to Kuihelani is substantially substandard. I mean, it is, it has not been, I mean it's not the
kind of road we're going to have traffic and there's no dividing line. I mean, there's
substantially a problem with that road. Are all these projects basically going to assist the County
or is the County going to repair that road and make it what I call a standard road? Right now it
definitely is a substandard road.
MR. SPENCE: Right. I would agree. I believe that came up at the Land Use Commission hearings. I
think that's more of a subdivision question. I see Public Works sitting in the back shaking her
head yes. That may be a question for that Department. I don't think it's a necessarily should be
a condition of zoning, but that would be just a standard requirement for subdivision.
COLTNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And maybe later, Mr. Chair, we can have Public Works
come down and address that question because again, we already have one industrial center there.
Now we're going to add these two plus a commercial center at the end and that's going to
increase traffic substantially and already that's a pretty heavily traveled road. I know this
because I travel it all the time and it's probably one of the ways people coming out of Waiale
coming out can catch Kuikahi, I mean Kuihelani and either go to Kahului or head, you know, to
Lahaina. So that's how many of them come out the exit. Where the State road is, where the
State highway is, no problem. The lights are in there, the traffic, the turn lanes are all in place
but on our side, Waiko Road, it's...no. Definitely needs some work so I'll wait Public Works
comes up and we'll ask that question but beyond that I think this fits in the area and its uses and
the way it was designed from the beginning when the master plan that I had seen when I first
came on this Council. So thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for Mr. Spence? Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. Could you share with us what was presented to the
Commission that they might want to be referring back to?
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MR. FASI: Thank you for that question. Basically, what the applicant presented to the Commission
that day was basically their plot plans. There is no building construction type development being
proposed. These are all just basically prepared lots with infrastructure built in and then they plan
to sell them fee simple. So there was no structure-type development being proposed at this time.
Each individual buyer will come in and obtain their own building permits and propose their own
design for their building.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I'm asking the question because it's, for them to say as represented
when it's just lots, I'm just wondering what was the purpose of the condition in the first place if
it's just...
MR. FASI: It's a standard condition that we put in a lot of our SM-1 permits.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. So it wasn't...
MR. FASI: It's just kind of a reassurance on the County's side, kind of an overlapping general
statement. Yeah, it's just a standard condition.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. And I see there's no plot plan for the parcel along Kuihelani.
Was there any representation of what kind of a layout, building layout there would be or a
setbacks from the highway?
MR. FASI: They didn't propose any layout for that particular parcel. Because it's going to be Business
Commercial and not so much Light Industrial, they, pretty much it's going to let the market
determine, you know, what type of structures are going to go in there and of course, you know,
the building setbacks will be per Building Code when they come in for their building permits.
They have to meet all those requirements, you know, anyway.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, they mentioned to me that there would likely be a leach field
between the pavement and the highway, which would increase the setback somewhat. But the
reason I was asking was just whether or not there was any kind of detail presented to the
Commission that the Commission wanted to make sure was in the final plan?
MR. FASI: I don't...at this time, at the Commission meeting, everything was pretty much conceptual.
Nothing was firm. They didn't come in with any final plans but it was all conceptual.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. Thank you.
MR. SPENCE: I don't recall any discussion of having a leach field between Waiko, I mean, that may be
but I think that would be a question for the applicant.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: It was just in line with your statement that everything had to be done in
conjunction with what was presented and I don't want to give that condition up without knowing
what was presented but it seems like it's a reasonable thing to do.
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MR. SPENCE: I believe the minutes are probably in the binder.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions at this time for Mr. Spence? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: For Department, yes. Just, Mr. Spence, you mentioned
Condition 2, compliance as presented to Planning Commission on May 14 th • I'm trying to find
those right now or if you have it, if it's brief enough or something, to just summarize real quick.
I'm just...because unless I know what you're wanting to disregard, I kind of want to know what
it is.
MR. SPENCE: Okay, the...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Mr. Couch is gonna point it out to me here.
MR. SPENCE: The minutes of the Planning Commission dated May 14, 2013 are a part of our
transmittal to the Council dated July 25 th . So those are a part of it. Those are the representations
made to the Commission. I would have to go through them again myself to exactly tell you
what.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: Corporation Counsel?
MR. HOPPER: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Just to maybe clarify, I think what Mr. Fasi was saying was that
condition is what you would normally see on an SMA permit and it would make sense to
reference the Planning Commission's decision on an SMA permit because that's the final
approval there for an SMA permit. If this body wanted to look at a representations made type
condition, it would most likely, I think, reference the representations made at this meeting today
and what was provided to the Council rather than the Commission because, for example, this
body could decide to impose different conditions, different requirements, et cetera, and so really
the representations you'd be looking at would be at the meeting today. So I think the
Department is looking at that condition and explaining that issue to you. Now, obviously, if
there's something in there that was told to the Commission that you would want to make into a
condition, that's fine and within this body's purview and I think the Director's statement about
the difficulty of enforcing a general condition like that, and it would be perhaps more prudent to
have a more specific type of condition, you know, I think is generally correct. But I think the
reference to the Planning Commission it seems to be was that's a standard SMA permitting
condition and because this is a Change in Zoning and Council would act, it would be more
appropriate to have the Council referenced if anybody at all is going to be referenced and any
meeting date referenced. But the, I think, Mr. Fasi had given you the background of why that
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was in there and it was apparently inadvertent referencing in the Planning Commission meeting
unless I'm mistaken.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you, Mr. Hopper. Well, I just, for me it's important to
know what happened at Planning Commission and statements and remarks and the reason for
approval or disapproval of anything. You know, the next item coming up I read through those
minutes and it's quite interesting of the discussion, so to just say, you know, the decision is made
here, that's fine, but for me to make a proper informed decision here, I would like to know what
happened there at the Planning Commission and that's my line of questioning, Chair, and my
reason for asking that. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Cochran. Anything, more questions at this time and Mr. Spence
will be available. Seeing none at this time, Members, your Chair requested a representative from
the State Department of Transportation and was earlier informed that Ferdinand Cajigal from the
Department District Office would join us. Unfortunately, we learned this morning that we will
not have a representative from the DOT with us. I'd like to refer the Members to the Chair's
request dated September 20, 2013, to Mr. Bagoyo, which is in your binders. The State Land Use
Commission's Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Decision of Order filed on May 3,
2013, Page 50, the Commission imposed the Condition la that states the TIAR, or Traffic Impact
Analysis Report, for the project dated May 17, 2011, shall be revised and resubmitted to the
DOT Highways Division for review and acceptance prior to Zone Change approval. Members,
the Committee received an e-mail this morning from the State Department, which you have seen
distributed to you, and I'm going to read this now so everybody knows what we're talking about.
Dear Councilman Carroll, in response to your letter to the Department of Transportation, DOT,
dated September 25, 2013, we regret to inform you that our representative who was scheduled to
testify at the Maui County Council's Land Use Committee meeting on October 16, 2013, will not
be available to attend the meeting. Attached is a Position Paper prepared by the DOT, dated
October 16, 2013, stating the DOT's concerns and comments and conditions regarding the
subject CIZ application. We are in the process of reviewing the Revised Traffic Impact Analysis
Report for the subject Waiko Light Industrial Park prepared by Phillip Rowell, dated September
2013. Charles Jencks and Phillip Rowell met with our Highways Planning Branch staff on
October 3 rd to go over their responses to the DOT's previous comments, which they indicated are
reflected in the revised TIAR, and to highlight the changes in the revised TIAR. The meeting
was helpful and we look forward to providing the DOT's comments on the Revised TIAR in
November of 2013. Mr. Bagoyo, would you care to, if there's no objection, I would like to call
the applicant forward?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Bagoyo, would you care to make comment? And it is difficult when we
receive something like this just before the meeting. Mr. Bagoyo?
MR. BAGOYO: Thank you so much. Thank you so much, Mr. Chairman, and Members of the
Committee. I really don't have any further comment. Phil Rowell from Rowell and Associates,
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who prepared the revised updated TIAR, is also here to respond to any questions related to the
DOT recent e-mail to you. We just, as I noted earlier, the representation that we have made to
the Planning Commission in response to Councilwoman Elle Cochran's questions, one of the
conditions as noted in the Findings of Facts that were transmitted to you, we agreed with the
State Land Use Commission that there's no apartment that will be created within the proposed
project and it's part of the condition. We wanted to be clear during the hearing with the State
Land Use Commission and with the Planning Commission that apartments will not be permitted.
And so, I think those are the two, those are the changes that we have agreed with the State Land
Use Commission and with the Planning Commission. The 8.5 acres proposed for Commercial
Retail Space, we have indicated both in the Planning Commission and the State Land Use
Commission that the net leasable area would be 100,000 square feet within the 8.5 acres and the
permitted uses on that parcel will be the uses that are permitted in B-1, B-2, and B-3 with the
exception of apartments. I think if you recall, just briefly, the M-1 ordinance was just recently
amended in 2012 and so the permitted uses that are being proposed are consistent with the uses
that are recently approved within the M-1 Light Industrial. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for Mr. Bagoyo, excuse me, at this time? Seeing none,
Members.. .oh, excuse me. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mr. Bagoyo, thank you for being here and
thank you for bringing this project forward. Do you have any comment on what the State DOT
says that we should impose some conditions on you? I don't know if you, have they seen this
letter yet? Has the applicant seen this letter, and if not, I would like them to see it.
CHAIR CARROLL: I believe that he has seen that already.
MR. BAGOYO: I did, just briefly, Councilman Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So they recommend we impose some conditions for the Change of
Zone.
MR. BAGOYO: Maybe if I could ask the representative of the owner, Mr. Charlie Jencks, to respond to
this.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: With no objections, Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: I'm sorry?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Can we have the representative of the owners come down, whoever?
CHAIR CARROLL: Any objection?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
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MR. JENCKS: Charlie Jencks, owner's representative for Pacific Rim Land and the ownership of the
property. With respect to the memorandum you received from State DOT, I am as unhappy as
you are, Mr. Chair, with regard to this memo. This is not what DOT agreed to in our meeting
nor is it what we were told by DOT earlier this week with regard to having someone here to
attest to the adequacy of the TIAR for this project. So I'm embarrassed for the State DOT and
I'm sorry to say that once again that person isn't here. Nevertheless, if you look at the decision
and order that was issued for the project and you cross reference the DNO Conditions with the
memorandum you received from DOT today, the conditions line up perfectly. So regardless of
what's in this memorandum, I have to abide by what the State Land Use Commission gave me,
which is exactly the same, so point is they're the same. The conditions are the same. I'm fine
with those conditions.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions? Thank you, Mr. Jencks.
MR. JENCKS: You're welcome.
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright, Members, what I read to you the first time, the TIAR and this is a State
Land Use Commission Findings of Fact, I'll repeat this again, the TIAR, or Traffic Impact
Analysis Report for the project, dated May 17, 2011, shall be revised and resubmitted to the
DOT Highways Division for review and acceptance prior to Zone Change approval. Now, I do
not like this any better than the applicant and I would really hope that if that was there we could
possibly do this today. However, in good standing, I am afraid that I am not going to be able to
bring this forward for approval today. It's very clear. There's no wiggle room inside there and it
would be very poor policy to try to find a way around it. However, I would hope that today we
can address every other aspect of this proposal and then when I do hear it again this should be
rather fast because that pretty much should be the only thing that we're going to have to address
on that day and I will work with, and I'm sure Mr. Jencks them will be talking to them, but I will
definitely work with them and try to expedite that response as soon as possible. Understanding
that, I am going to continue and like I said, I hope that we can run through everything else over
here and address any other potential concerns today and then when we do hear this bill again,
we'll have a revised bill having what we go over today to submit at the next meeting and then I
think we can have a very nice clean bill that will be good for the applicant, good for the Council.
Alright, Members, we have Mr. Dave Taylor here. Could you come down, Mr. Taylor? Are
there any questions for Mr. Taylor at this time about any water issues in the project?
Mr. Guzman.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. It looks as though in the transcripts there is pages and
pages worth of conversation and comments and questions regarding the ability to source water
for this project. We're talking about gallons here and there. I just wanted to hear it directly from
the Director in terms of do we have enough water source here to.. .they're even talking about the
aquifers. It's quite convoluted in terms of the questions that are being asked but I guess my point
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is do we have the water source in terms of their concerns here in the Commission's report or
minutes, sorry.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Taylor?
MR. TAYLOR: Thank you, Member Guzman. This project is intending to serve, be served by an
existing approved potable water system, a private potable water system.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Private?
MR. TAYLOR: A private. It's already operating at the existing baseyard there and I believe they're
using that water system to serve this one. It's privately owned, privately operated so whether or
not it has enough capacity and is really more a question for their consultant than for our
Department.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay, very good. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Are there any other questions for Mr. Taylor? Seeing none, thank you,
Mr. Taylor. Right now I'd like to call down Rowena Dagdag-Andaya from Public Works. And I
will start off with a question for you. Noted in the LUC's finding 159 states petitioner is
working with Alexander & Baldwin and the County of Maui in an effort to widen the
North-South Collector Road as required by the County to 100 feet. Can you give us the status of
this work?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: I'm sorry, Chair, the North-South Collector Road?
CHAIR CARROLL: I'm sorry?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Wrong one?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We're talking Waiko Road, Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Chair, Waiko Road?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Not North-South Collector Road.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: I'm sorry, Chair. The North-South Collector Road is in Kihei.
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, okay.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: But the, I believe earlier we had talked about, or I believe Councilmember
Victorino may have had a question regarding the existing conditions of East Waiko Road as it
fronts the project area ,and I just wanted to make note that we do have a Draft EA currently in
place for proposed improvements of East Waiko Road where it intersects with Waiale Road all

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

October 16, 2013

the way down to Kuihelani Highway. That project is also in conjunction with the improvements
to or the extension of Waiale Road up to Honoapiilani Highway. So that Draft EA is currently in
draft form. However, the status of that project right now, and let me just back track a little bit,
but the, what's proposed in that project is to improve that portion of East Waiko Road all the
way down to Kuihelani Highway, and what we intend to do is create six-foot paved shoulders
and also swales so those improvements are what we have currently in the works in planning right
now. We have been in discussion with the developer and the landowner regarding
improvements, and overall the only concerns that we had as a Department was regarding access
to the existing Waikapu Landfill. In our correspondence with the developer and the developer's
consultant, we indicated that we would like to continue that access. As you know, it traverses
onto the property but the proposed configuration of the subdivision would abandon that existing
easement, so they have actually, the developer has been working with A&B to have us continue,
or indicate or find a different area on the A&B side, on the other side of the property to, so that
we can continue our access onto the landfill area. We did note in one of our letters to provide for
a road widening lot to allow for the 60 foot right-of-way but it's already existing. So, but in the
meantime, we're still working with the developer. They'll need to comply with our standards. I
know there was a question regarding the Traffic Impact Report and any impacts to Waiko Road.
I believe in the Traffic Impact Report, there had been several improvements that were proposed
and recommended, and I believe the applicant's traffic consultant is here so he can discuss more
about that, but our engineers were satisfied with the report. In Mr. Rowell's report, he also
indicated that at the time of 50 percent buildout, you know, we'll be able to reassess or we will
continue to monitor some of the intersections and then maybe reassess at 50 percent buildout to
see if there are any changes or any additional improvements that need to be made. So we are
amenable to that being able to review. I'm not quite familiar with the memo that was sent out by
the State DOT. I don't know what kind of conditions they are proposing but we can most
certainly work with them and also with the applicant if there are any changes that need to be
made.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Questions? Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And I guess Carla will give you a copy of the e-mail
and memo that we received, I guess you received, Chair, this morning, you know, so puts it kind
of in a last minute glitch as far as what we're trying to do. But anyhow, Ms. Dagdag-Andaya,
what I'm concerned with, and if you look on the map on Exhibit 5a, I was told that access would
be allowed for the properties near the commercial property. I don't know if you have that. This
is all part of our thick binder of paper, you know, and it's actually 5a and it's part of the
correspondence July 25, 2013. Anyhow, they're supposed to be allowing the back properties,
A&B, as well as for our landfill to, and I can see one clearly, between the commercial property
and the industrial property that presently exists, where they want to put their commercial fronting
Kuihelani. And you can see the roadway going right between, there's supposed to be a roadway
there, and they're supposed to also give us one more access on the other end according to the
developer. So we'll call the developer up a little bit later to make sure that's fact. My other
question to you is do we have enough in this plan for widening.. .1 know you said we're going to
put 6-foot sidewalks and shoulders and of course we need a swale. If you've ever lived there
- 15 -
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long enough, when we have big rains, that becomes a flood zone. I mean the water just floods
through that area because it's coming off the Waihee, not Waihee, Waikapu Stream, yeah. So
anyhow but is that road gonna be widened enough for the traffic, like trucks? Because, you
know, you're talking now that's what you're going to end up having, containers, big trucks, rigs
and all that. And right now, first of all, there's no center line so, you know, it's kind of like what
side of the road are you on and then you kind of hug the other area. I travel this road enough to
know that it is a real challenge right now and if we get, we develop another industrial area, it's
gonna even become worse. So this plan is to improve the road to standards so that our citizens
can feel safe that traverse this area, East Waiko?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Councilmember Victorino and Chair, yes. We are building it up to
standard. I don't know the full details as far as depth of construction or reconstruction. This will
be also a Federally funded project so there are certain standards that need to be met in order to
meet Federal guidelines. So it will be a road that will be able to accommodate those heavy types
of vehicles.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Let me ask you one more question in this respect, that road, will
that be also connected for our futuristic baseyard as well as our regional park? Because that's
right across the road. But will it come into that or will it use the old cane road?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: The...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I know it's a little off the subject, but that has bearing if it does
come in.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Right. The, I'm sorry, Councilmember Victorino, the, well, as far as
connections, in reviewing the Draft EA for Waiko, I don't recall that particular as far as access
into that new 209 acres. Something that we can take a look at. It does connect up with the
Waiale extension that will go down towards Honoapiilani Highway into Waikapu but that's as
far as I know at this point.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Let's see, I remember you had an initial question regarding the access
easement?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: What you had explained to me, I don't have that in front of me, but I do
have a letter from Mr. Vince Bagoyo, dated June 22, 2012, and that was in response to our letters
to him as well as the meetings that we had with him and also with the developer regarding the
access. So what I have in front of me is a map showing the existing easement to be abandoned.
However, our access, or what we'd be able to utilize is the entrance to the subdivision off of
Waiko Road and then it extends out towards the A&B parcel, and then there's also that proposed
- 16 -
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temporary access easement that kind of heads towards like up towards Wailuku Heights side.
And so that would connect up to the landfill area. So we would be able to access the landfill area
using that configuration. I'm not aware of that other one that you had mentioned so I'll take a
look at that as well.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, when the developer comes, we can get clarification on that
just to be on the safe side. And I guess that's it. I mean, you know, my concern is, you know,
this road is heavily traveled as is and then we add more industrial and compounded with the fact
that a lot of residents use that to come off of especially if they're coming back from Kihei, not
Kihei so much, from Lahaina, they cut down Kuihelani and come across Waiko to get to Waiale
to Waikapu Gardens and all that. So I kind of know the traffic patterns and that makes me
concerned that if we don't make improvements and we add that traffic, oh boy. We got a
challenge. I don't know what the State's problem is because the State entry and the
egress/ingress at the State entry is not a problem. It's wide enough and they've got turn lanes.
They've got everything there. So I don't know what their concern is but yeah, I'd like to hear
what they have to say. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Oh no, and thank you, Mr. Victorino. I also live in that area too so I
understand the conditions of that existing road.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Ms. Dagdag-Andaya.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further questions for Ms. Andaya? If not, thank you very much.
Members, I'd like to ask Corporation Counsel, the Condition No. 2, the project shall be in
substantial compliance as presented to the Planning Commission on May 14, 2013. Is this
appropriate since it's coming through us and we are the final authority. Should it be the Maui
County Council and its Land Use Committee or should it remain like that? Corporation
Counsel?
MR. HOPPER: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I believe that I'd said that in my opinion typically the body that
approves it, it's the representations made by the last body before, you know, before approval. So
in this case, a condition like that, if the Council wanted, would most properly read, again it's
hard to pick a date because we're going to have multiple meetings apparently too, but at the very
least as represented before the Maui County Council. Again, that doesn't mean that you can't
look at the minutes of all of the Planning Commission meetings and see what the rationale was
there and if you think there's additional conditions merited because of that make them
conditions. You certainly have the ability to do that but I don't think I've seen a, I could be
wrong, but I don't think I've seen a Council-level approval that referenced a specific Planning
Commission date. It may have been done before but I think normally you would reference what
was represented to the Council.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Members, any comment? If not, the Chair would think it appropriate
for a motion. Mr. Couch?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Yeah, I did have a comment. So, I'm going to go back to
Mr. Spence's comment. The Planning Department recommends not putting these conditions in,
is that what you're saying?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Spence?
MR. SPENCE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. That's, I don't see the need for them considering that...I
mean, if you look at the 26 conditions imposed by the State Land Use Commission, it covers
everything from archeology to where Commercial can take place, where it's going to be solely
Light Industrial. It discusses the easement. It discusses the drainage. It discusses, you know,
water, the private water system. It discusses wastewater, how that's going to be handled. I
mean, it covers pretty much A to Z. I'm not sure that we need additional conditions on this
application. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, so Mr. Chair, I mean I kind of agree with Mr. Spence. It's just
more paperwork and because they have to comply regardless because it's the State, the State's
LUC and my goodness, there's a lot of conditions here that are pretty succinct. So I'm all for not
adding those other two conditions because one of them is redundant and the other one is...
CHAIR CARROLL: So leave Condition 2 as it is?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah...no. Remove both of those conditions. Not add any conditions
on our side. The State's are fine.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yeah. The Chair was going to propose a motion to change it to the County
Council and the Land Use Committee. Well, here let's...the Chair would accept a motion to
change Condition 2 to read, that the project shall be in substantial compliance and use as
presented to the Maui County Council and its Land Use Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved...
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: Who made the motion? Thank you, Ms. Baisa. Been moved by Ms. Baisa [sic],
seconded by Mr. Guzman [sic]. Discussion. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chair. You know, as I said, I'm not in support of
adding any conditions to this because there are already 26 conditions on there so, but if we do
add conditions, then yeah, definitely it should say Council but I don't know what your
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recommendation is going to be. Are you going to ask for the two conditions to be put on there or
apparently it sounds like you are.
CHAIR CARROLL: Well, if you wish to, if you wish to remove the conditions, you can always make a
motion to remove the conditions.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But they've never been added yet. That's my, or maybe I need to
check with Corp Counsel. They're not on the Change in Zoning are they?
MR. HOPPER: I think...
CHAIR CARROLL: I'd like to address the motion on the floor in case something else...
MR. HOPPER: Mr. Chair, I think in the draft ordinance they are attached as conditions. So yeah, right
now those are.. .as part of the draft ordinance that they're on there. So you would need a motion
to either remove them, alter them, add to them, et cetera.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Gotcha.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch? Alright, there's a motion on the floor. Further discussion? All those
in favor, please signify by saying, "aye"?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried, eight ayes, one excused. Mr. Hokama.
VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Cochran, Couch, Crivello, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Hokama.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVED AMENDMENT.
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
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CHAIR CARROLL: Yes, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Is this where I would put that in right now? Is this where you
would want me to put the motion in to remove those conditions?
CHAIR CARROLL: I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Is this where you would want me to put the motion in to remove
the conditions completely?
CHAIR CARROLL: If you wish, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Then I move to remove Conditions 1 and 2 on Exhibit "B".
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. Couch, seconded by Mr. Victorino. Discussion,
Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We've, I mean the Department recommends it and I mean if
you look at the conditions that are already there, I believe that's sufficient, and again it's
as the Department says, that the more work we have them do, the more they're going to
be...well, they haven't said that but they're implying that the more they're going to be
adding more EP's and whatnot. So it, this is something that is kind of a redundant thing
and I'm asking that we remove those.
CHAIR CARROLL: Further discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. So I understand the point that Planning
Department is making and my question, and I see the laundry list of conditions from State
Land Use, which are all great, all 26 of them. So who, I mean I'm looking at a
development and they got all kinds of conditions on the State level and we have a few on
our Maui, you know, our County level. Our County inspectors go in and, you know,
there's clearly State violations but because it's not County, then they don't get a say or
won't even point it out to the entities who can, who should be notified. So I'm just
hoping that such a maneuver here is not going to allow State things to be overlooked,
bypassed, because I don't know how many State inspectors are in our County to be, you
know, monitoring and enforcing these conditions. So I would like some type of, I wanna
have confidence that, you know, we, even though we on this Council County level are not
-20 -
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imposing such conditions, that the State, yeah there's a laundry list but how are they
going to be enforced?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Spence?
MR. SPENCE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. By State law, the County, the County Planning
Department, actually the Planning Director is the enforcement body on District Boundary
Amendments. So we would look at these like, I mean, we would look at these just like
Conditions of Zoning. So if the developer came in and said well we want to do a
Nordstrom's on the part that supposed to be Light Industrial, we would go, no, you can't,
because that's part of the conditions of the State Land Use Commission. Or if, you
know, they want to change something with drainage or anything contrary to these
conditions, we would, you know, we would enforce these conditions. We would look at
them just as if the Council had placed these conditions on it. And I would say these
conditions are substantially clearer than say some of the earlier District Boundary
Amendments that have been granted by the Land Use Commission. They're more
extensive and they're, the wording is more clear, so there's not so much gray areas as
some of the things we've experienced in the past.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you for your explanation, Director Spence,
and so I, you know, again just want to make sure that you folks will still look at the State
Land Use conditions and as you're explaining to me, yes, you do and yes, you enforce
and yes, you abide by them. So it, you know, that gives me that kind of comfort, I
suppose, in removing this. But for me, I mean the more protection and redundancy in
something the better so in case it is overlooked it's, there's another layer in a sense that's
not going to, you know, create any more. It's just reinforcing what's already there so
that's kind of how I look at it but thank you, Chair, for this opportunity, and Mr. Spence.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Cochran. Any more discussion to the motion on...oh,
Mister, Corporation Counsel?
MR. HOPPER: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I don't know if this is something the body has done
before but I'm not sure if it would be improper, if it would be a problem to add a
condition to say shall develop in compliance with the Land Use Commission conditions.
I don't know if we've done that before or if there's a problem with doing that but I mean
those conditions are already applicable anyway. I mean, so either way, but if that's
something the Department, would help the Department if they were checking on zoning
conditions and that would flag the State conditions. Substantively, I wouldn't see that
making a difference but I don't know if that's something that the body would consider.
Again, I don't think necessary because the Land Use Commission conditions are the law,
so that's there anyway.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion?
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair? Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I just want to acknowledge Mr. Hopper's comments and so I
just want to say thank you for that recommendation and suggestion.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion to the motion on the floor? Seeing none, all in
favor, signify by saying, "aye"?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed, signify by saying no. Motion passes, seven ayes, two excused,
Ms. Crivello and Mr. Hokama.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Cochran, Couch, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Crivello and Hokama.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVED AMENDMENT.
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright, Members, did you all have a chance to look at the handout that I just
handed out -COUNCIL MEMBERS: No.
CHAIR CARROLL: --that Ms. Nakata handed out?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No.
CHAIR CARROLL: Okay. Do you need a few moments? I'm gonna take a five-minute recess over
here. I want you to look at this. We now stand in recess for five minutes. . . . (gavel). . .
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RECESS:

2:44 p.m.

RECONVENE: 2:50 p.m.
CHAIR CARROLL: . . .(gavel). . . This Land Use Committee meeting of October 16, 2013 is now
back in session. Members, what I have before you is to add a new condition of zoning
confirming permitted uses for the subject 31.222-acre property that we allocated between two
portions of the property as depicted on the attached exhibit, consistent with prior State Land Use
Commission (LUC) approval. I'm going to move and this would be the motion, that permitted
uses for the subject property are as follows: for the 8.5 acre portion of the property shown in
pink on the attached conceptual plan, labeled 55 from a State Land Use Commission proceeding
on this project, any use permitted in a B-1 Neighborhood Business District, B-2 Community
Business District, or B-3 Central Business District excluding apartment houses and two, for the
remainder of the subject property as shown in blue on the attached Conceptual Plan, any
permitted, any use permitted in an M-1 Light Industrial District, excluding uses permitted in a
B-1, B-2, or B-3 District and excluding apartment housing, houses. And I would ask for a
motion.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. Guzman, seconded by Mr. Victorino. The reason I have done
this is LUC imposed a condition restricting uses for the 8.5 acre portion of the property
consistent with this proposed Condition of Zoning, however, while the Conceptual Plan LUC's
findings, the facts indicate the remainder of the property shall be limited to Light Industrial use
without apartment houses. These documents do not make clear that such uses shall exclude
commercial uses that would otherwise be permitted under the M-1 Light Industrial District. The
proposed condition of zoning would still allow for all M-1 Light Industrial District uses other
than apartment houses to occur on the property. It would simply allocate those uses between the
two pieces of property as reflected on the attached exhibit, in an effort to ensure the lots of the
second larger area remain available for nonretail Light Industrial uses. Further discussion? All
in favor of the motion, please signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried, six ayes, three excused, Ms. Crivello, Mr. Hokama,
and Mr. White.
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Balsa, Cochran, Couch, and Victorino.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Crivello, Hokama, and White.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVED AMENDMENT.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, if there's further questions.. .Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. Not so much questions, Chair, but I have
a proposal to make.
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: If I may, thank you very much. On our brief recess, I had a
discussion with Planning Department and following up on Mr. Hopper's comments and
suggestion on a condition that would just, I guess in a sense reiterate the conditions of
zoning from the State Land Use. So I wanted to make a proposal for a motion for a
condition.
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And again, Planning Department mentioned that it would
make it easier on their behalf too. So just to lay the groundwork for flagging and
monitoring when...so my motion is to, sorry, a condition, my motion is to add a
condition stating zoning subject to State District Boundary Amendment Conditions in
State Land Use Commission Docket No. Al2-796, and that basically just refers to I
believe those 26 conditions from State Land Use, which I believe we all agree, applicant
agrees and also Department.
CHAIR CARROLL: Well, we need a second before you continue.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: She hasn't really finished the motion yet.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry. I was, okay, let me go back and this is the motion.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Yes, please.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: To add a condition, zoning subject to State District
Boundary Amendment Conditions in State Land Use Commission Docket No. Al2-976.
CHAIR CARROLL: It has been moved by Ms. Cochran, seconded, or zero second. I am sorry,
seeing no second, motion fails.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, we have reached the point where I told you the first time, I
informed you, I would like to defer this matter and as soon as possible I will hear it again.
The only outstanding thing we have right now, I mean something else could come up, but
the most outstanding thing of course is the State response. If there is no objection, I'd
like to defer this and move to the next Item.
COUNCILMEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (Excused: SC and GRIT)
ACTION:

DEFER PENDING FURTHER DISCUSSION.

CHAIR CARROLL: This Item is deferred. Members, it is 3 o'clock but we have several Members that
have to leave, but would you like to take a 10-minute recess now?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's alright to continue? Alright. Thank you.
ITEM NO. 13: CONDITIONAL PERMIT FOR AMY VVISTHOFF-MARTIN AND DAN
MARTIN TO HOST AND CONDUCT WEDDINGS AT AN APPROVED
BED AND BREAKFAST AT 138 AWAIKU STREET (LAHAINA)
(CC 13-194)

CHAIR CARROLL: Members, we have before us LU-13, Conditional Permit for
Wisthoff-Martin and Dan Martin to Host and Conduct a Wedding, Weddings at an
Approved Bed and Breakfast at 138 Awaiku Street, Lahaina. The Committee is in receipt
of the following: one, County Communication 13-194, from Deputy Planning Director,
transmitting a proposed bill to grant a request from Amy Wisthoff-Martin and Dan Martin
for a Conditional Permit through March 31, 2018, to host and conduct weddings at an
approved bed and breakfast within the County Agricultural District for property located at
138 Awaiku Street in Lahaina, Maui, Hawaii; two, correspondence dated September 5,
2013, from the Department of Corporation Counsel, transmitting a revised proposed bill
entitled A Bill for an Ordinance Granting Amy Wisthoff-Martin and Dan Martin a
Conditional Permit to Host and Conduct Weddings at an Approved Bed and Breakfast
within the County Agricultural District for Property Located at Tax Key (2) 4-7-009:058,
138 Awaiku Street, Lahaina, Maui, Hawaii. The revised proposed bill incorporates
revisions to clarify the intent of the Maui Planning Commission and nonsubstantive
revisions. This is the version of the bill the Committee will be focusing on today. First,
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we will receive a PowerPoint presentation today from Jay Wisthoff. This Committee will
stand in recess for two minutes. . . (gavel). . .
RECESS:

2:58 p.m.

RECONVENE: 3:01 p.m.
CHAIR CARROLL: . . .(gavel). . . This Land Use Committee meeting of October 16, 2013 is now
back in session. The presenter can proceed.
MR. WISTHOFF: . . .(PowerPoint Presentation). . . Thank you. Good afternoon, Council members.
My name is Jay Wisthoff. I'm an owner of the subject property. With me today are Amy
Wisthoff-Martin, my daughter, and Dan Martin, my son-in-law, who are both owners and hosts
at the bed and breakfast. We are here today to present information in support of our application
for a Conditional Permit to host weddings on our property. Ho'oilo House is an approved bed
and breakfast located in Launiupoko. We are a family owned and operated business. Amy and
Dan live on site and are the full-time hosts and co-owners. Jay and Kathy live in the
neighborhood and are active in the daily operations. We are dedicated to providing our guests
with a unique Maui experience, minimizing our impact to our neighborhood and our island
home, growing pesticide-free fruits and vegetables and providing community support to Maui.
Ho'oilo House has been the recipient of several national and international travel awards. We are,
we actively support several local nonprofit organizations. Through our regular donations, we are
among the top all-time donors to the Pacific Whale Foundation. Our property is zoned
Agricultural. The land is classified as Type-E, which is the lowest classification for Ag land.
The undeveloped land in our area is severely sloped with medium and large boulders. There is
no historical evidence of the property ever having been actively farmed. Our property has been
accorded Rural Growth Boundary status in the most recent Maui Island Plan. Despite these
hurdles, we have a producing pesticide-free orchard. Fruit is used every day in our continental
breakfast for guests and excess fruit is sold at the Launiupoko Farmer's Market on Saturday
mornings. Our implemented farm plan has been inspected and approved on several occasions by
the Planning Department. We have installed a 33 kilowatt hour solar array, which provides
90 percent of our power needs reducing the strain on limited island resources. We are
conscientious in our recycling efforts. We compost plant and food waste and use it around the
property and our pest control is nontoxic and organic. Our goal with this application is to create
a more complete Maui experience for our guests. Currently guests at Ho'oilo House who come
to Maui to be married must leave the house for a beach or other location for their ceremony.
When we started the application, we placed the following self-imposed restrictions in our
application. First, that wedding parties must be registered guests at Ho'oilo House, so we're not
open to the general public to come up and be married. No more than 25 participants, wedding
guests and party, wedding party and guests, no loud or amplified music, no additional exterior
lighting, quiet times of 9:00 p.m. to 8:00 a.m. will be enforced, which coincide with our quiet
times in our B&B permit, and all parking will be on-site. Additionally, the Maui Planning
Commission added restrictions of no more than two weddings per month of 11 to 25 participants
and annual reporting to the Planning Department. As part of this application process, we have
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received an approved on-site parking plan from the Zoning and Enforcement Division. We also
hired an engineer to prepare a wastewater flow analysis, which was reviewed and approved by
the Department of Health. Prior to submitting our application, we approached each of our
neighbors with adjoining property lines and received letters of support from each of them.
Several other letters of support were also included from the community. In conclusion, we have
proven ourselves to be good neighbors. We are thoughtful stewards of the land and strive to
limit our impact on this beautiful island that we call home. Weddings will allow us to create
memorable experiences for our guests and even reduce some of the stress in our local parks. The
Maui Planning Commission on March 12, 2013, unanimously approved an amendment to our
Special Use Program and recommended forwarding of this Conditional Use or Conditional
Permit to the Land Use Commission for approval. We ask the Committee for their support of
our application and thank you for your time.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. This Committee will stand in recess for two minutes. . . . (gavel). . .
RECESS:

3:05 p.m.

RECONVENE: 3:07 p.m.

CHAIR CARROLL: . . . (gavel). . . Land Use Committee meeting of October 16, 2013 is now back in
session. Planning Department, any comment?
MS. McLEAN: Thank you. Yes, Chair, good afternoon, Chair and Committee members. I'll just say
that the Planning Department supports the proposed bill with the six conditions recommended by
the Maui Planning Commission. Also here today is the staff Planner, Kurt Wollenhaupt, who
also handled the applicant's State Special Use Permit for, first for the B&B and then also to add
the weddings as a use under the State's Special Use Permit. So Kurt is quite familiar with the
property and with the applicants and their operation so he's available to answer questions on the
procedural side if the Committee has any. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair? Chair'?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mister...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh...Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: This is what happens when you're in the south 40. Now I know how
you feel. Chair, I've had the opportunity to read all the documents and to see the presentation.
Just one question for the Planning Department. Have there been any RFSs in regards to this?
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MR. WOLLENHAUPT: There have been no identified complaints.
CHAIR CARROLL: Please identify yourself at the microphone.
MR. WOLLENHAUPT: Kurt Wollenhaupt from the Planning Department. There have been no official
RFSs. That would be something that we would look in the KIVA system. In addition, I have on
record no telephone calls, e-mails, or negative comments or complaints from the operation of this
B&B at all.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much. I think that's very important. You know, when
we were passing this kind of legislation, one of the things we were very concerned about was not
having negative impact in a neighborhood, and that tells me a lot if the neighbors are, you know,
not calling in and saying turn off the radio and, you know, get the folks to bed. So it sounds like
it's a responsible operation. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Next was Mr. Guzman.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Oh, thank you, Chair. I have a question for the Department. How many of
these type of Special Use Permits do we have in regards to wedding-type businesses on Ag
property? I mean, do you have that number of how many are existing out there?
MR. WOLLENHAUPT: Well, there's actually, according to the research that I did, there would be two
operations that I am aware of that have gone through the process. One would be the OW Ranch,
Ms. Winfrey's approved bed and breakfast, which also does allow special activities, such as
weddings. I think up there it's a limitation, I believe, it's 100 participants for her large property.
However, they did go through a similar process with the Conditional Permit process and that was
approved. The other location that I'm aware of on Ag land would be the Lavender Farm in Kula.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Oh, yes.
MR. WOLLENHAUPT: And they have a State Land Use Commission Special Use Permit to hold such
events as this also.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay.
MR. WOLLENHAUPT: So those would be the two I've identified on Ag land.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you. One more follow-up question, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Are there any that are not on Ag land within the vicinity or geographic
location near this particular site?
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MS. McLEAN: None in the Launiupoko, the whole Launiupoko subdivisions.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Okay, thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. And for Department, I know our own Department of
Transportation had some comments in regards to additional traffic could be generated from, and
I wanna preface that I think B&Bs and weddings are two different animals really as in, you
know, attendance and it's going to be people coming in and out. There's going to be caterers.
There's going to be things of that nature, which is very different from a B&B. So, in her,
Ms. Johnson Winer's comments, I believe, was added traffic onto, which is already backs up,
main highway, Highway 30 there and perhaps setting back the timefi ame of our bus system in
particular. So just comments from Department if you folks had anything to say to this body in
regards to her comments?
-

MS. McLEAN: Thank you. We feel that the Planning Commission's proposed limitation on the
number of guests was an appropriate way to ensure that the traffic and other impacts were kept
quite to a minimum. And from what the applicants have represented, it's very unlikely that on
any kind of regular basis they would even approach that kind of number. I think the maximum is
25 guests. Most typically for them it's the couple that's staying at the B&B, an officiant, maybe
a couple of witnesses that to even get to 10 people would be a large ceremony in terms of what
they envision and the requests that they've received from guests. So having that limitation of 25
was quite adequate. Kurt is also pointing out the limitation of having two per month. So it
wouldn't be any kind of daily or even weekly event. So with those limitations, we felt that that
was an appropriate way to address potential traffic.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. And a follow-up, Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So, I guess Mr. Wollenhaupt is more familiar with this two per
month. I thought the number turned out to be almost down to one per week. Is that not correct?
MR. WOLLENHAUPT: Well, the Planning Commission had quite a bit of discussion about how many
weddings and what the impact would be, and the proposed condition, well the Planning
Commission recommended was that the number of weddings having between 11 to
25 participants, those would be limited to two per month. Now if it was a recommitment
ceremony, husband and wife that were staying at the bed and breakfast, if it was three or four
people, the impacts of that would be less so after they looked at other approved ones, the two that
- 29 -
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I previously mentioned at the OW Ranch and the Lavender Farm and they considered the
transportation comments, they thought on the "larger weddings" that would have between 11 to
24, those should be limited to only two per month.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. WOLLENHAUPT: So the smaller ones, those would be as frequent as I guess the applicant would
have at their specific B&B -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
MR. WOLLENHAUPT: --with less impact.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. If I recall in the minutes, I think 60 with the smaller more
infrequent in between the larger. Sixty per year, which there's 52 weeks in a year, obviously
that's a little bit over. So again, you know, B&B, no complaints, RFSs for B&Bs but this is a
whole different type of business we're talking about now so, Chair, that's all I have for now.
Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further discussion before the Chair gives his recommendation?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sir?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry, Chair Is, are we going to bring applicant down for
questions?
CHAIR CARROLL: If there's no objection, would you like to speak to the...?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
CHAIR CARROLL: Is there any objection to bringing the applicant down?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes. Could the applicant or their representative please come forward. Please
identify yourself at the microphone.
MR. WISTHOFF: I'm Jay Wisthoff, one of the owners of the property.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Cochran.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair, and aloha. Thank you for being here
Mr. Wisthoff. So I'm looking at the map in regards to your neighbor's support and it looks like
you're in this, the orange lot -MR. WISTHOFF: Yes, correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --surrounded by the four that have sent letters of approval or
support?
MR. WISTHOFF: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And if I recall in the minutes from Planning Commission,
Commissioner Lay, Ivan Lay had some concerns in regards to probably these undeveloped lots
or letters that were sent out to the people in California who you never got a response back from.
So my question is since I think the Planning Commission meeting in March of this year, have
you heard back from those other, you know, people, owners?
MR. WISTHOFF: It's one lot that's undeveloped on the, what the northwest corner of that map, and we
have not heard back from those people and very recently they've begun moving dirt down there,
and I went down and talked to the person down there. He was a contractor from California that
is moving over here and is working for the owners, and he says that they're building the one
house now and possibly the second later and they're building them on spec to sell. But I have
not talked to the owner.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And I just, because again, people not knowing, they come
in. They live and all of a sudden there's a wedding enterprise next door with the traffic and
perhaps not quite what they expected but and my other...sorry, Chair, if I can follow up with
another question?
CHAIR CARROLL: I'm sorry?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: May I follow up with another question?
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes, proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay. Thank you. And I enjoyed reading your green initiatives
and what have you for your site.
MR. WISTHOFF: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: One thing that does concern me is water and I know it's on a
private system. I know that's why Department, our County Department of Water Supply didn't
have comments because it's not County.
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MR. WISTHOFF: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And, you know, are you using, are you going to be using low-flow
fixtures?
MR. WISTHOFF: I believe we already do. No, no we don't.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
MR. WISTHOFF: Sorry. Oh, that's true.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Because that, because I'm looking at your initiatives in the
recycling and what have you, composting, wonderful. Wonderful. Water is a big issue in that
area in my eyes anyways. I didn't hear comments from any other department, but it is a private,
you know, subdivision and so I would recommend or would like to see, perhaps, if that's doable
for you folks being that there's neighbors, in particular the kuleana landowners who have had
ongoing problems with their share of water to supply to their farming such as your, what you're
doing on your land. So just to be fair and share the resources in that area, I think it would be nice
to consider low-flow fixtures and, Chair, that's all I have. Oh, one last question.
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: What is Ho'oilo mean? Ho'oilo?
MR. WISTHOFF: Winter. Ho'oilo is winter. So this is a winter house. We came from Alaska when
we moved here.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion before the Chair gives his recommendation? Mr. Couch,
followed by Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair Having looked at this and having actually done
a site visit at the property a couple of times, haven't been able to stay there but been up to the
property a couple times, they seem like they have their act together. They've got enough land
for the parking. It looks like there was 15 parking spaces that were pointed out in the slide. This
seems like something that would be very low impact, especially since there's no, you know, no
amplified, loud or amplified music shall be permitted, additional exterior lighting, quiet times, I
think that this is something that can be of benefit to Maui visitors so I am in full support of this.
Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. I'd like the applicant to come back up. I had a couple
of quick questions for him.
CHAIR CARROLL: Could the applicant please go and identify yourself once again at the microphone.
MR. WISTHOFF: Jay Wisthoff, owner of the property.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, and thank you very much. First of all, you have here
in your plan six bedrooms, which of two of them are occupied by you and your family or the
owner-occupants, right?
MR. WISTHOFF: No, sir. We have a two bedroom ohana on the property also. It's...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, that's, I'm sorry. Okay, correction.
MR. WISTHOFF: And then the six bedroom bed and breakfast is...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Is what you rent out?
MR. WISTHOFF: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Secondly, when was this built?
MR. WISTHOFF: Two thousand and three.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Two thousand and three. So you were one of the early builders in
that area?
MR. WISTHOFF: Well, we didn't build the property. We bought it. It was a spec property built and -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I see.
MR. WISTHOFF: --started in 2001 I believe and we bought it in 2003.
COLTNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay, and I notice, you know, since Ms. Cochran's talking
about water, I noticed you had a nice, I guess swimming pool in the front? Is that what that is?
MR. WISTHOFF: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah?
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MR. WISTHOFF: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So is that set up to be recycled water or, you know, water
that is continuously used by filtration and...
MR. WISTHOFF: Yes. It uses, well one, the input water is ag water.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. WISTHOFF: And it's, we've never completely drained the pool. I don't think we ever have. And
it's also set up with a valve at the bottom, at the driveway for the, with a Fire Department
hookup so in case of a fire, the Fire Department can hook a hose up to it and empty the pool onto
the fire.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So in other words, it's used for fire suppression?
MR. WISTHOFF: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: If there was brush fire or house fire or something of that nature?
MR. WISTHOFF: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Very good. Thank you very much and appreciate what you're
doing. I just wanted to get clarification in those areas. Thank you very much.
MR. WISTHOFF: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion? Seeing none, the Chair will give his recommendation.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Recommendation.
CHAIR CARROLL: The Chair will entertain a motion to recommend passage on first reading of the
Revised Proposed Bill entitled A Bill for an Ordinance Granting Amy Wisthoff-Martin and Dan
Martin a Conditional Permit to Host and Conduct Weddings at an Approved Bed and Breakfast
within the County Agricultural District for Property Located at Tax Key (2) 4-7-009:058 at 138
Awaiku Street, Lahaina, Maui, Hawaii; and filing of County Communication 13-194.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. Guzman, seconded by Mr. Victorino. Discussion?
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. And, you know, Chair, my water concerns are a huge
bother, it's very bothersome to me and again the change in usage for this land, for the land from
Ag into these estates to into B&B and now into wedding and a whole entire business is, you
know, it's just this, I don't know, a chain of occurrences that I believe were never originally
intended for the area. And again, it's not, it's nothing against anybody or weddings or what have
you, but I just think that, you know, we vetted out TVRs, B&Bs and this is a whole other, like I
said, animal for me. You know, I mean, Mr. Guzman asked how many other weddings occur,
businesses per se happen in this vicinity. There isn't any. But you know, perhaps we need to
talk about. Is there going to be a cap? You know, this is going to set precedence for others to
show that we, the Council, approve and go ahead. But for me, it matters where it is. It matters
how it's being done. You know, it matters. So I am not going to support this at this time, Chair
But again, and that's why I thank you for this opportunity to explain it. I'm sure it will pass
through and by all means, again, this, everyone's a free enterprise, but I'm stating my concerns
and I'm stating my reasons and thank you for this opportunity.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion before I call for the question? Hearing none...oh, I'm
sorry. Mr. Guzman?
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah, Chair, I'm in support of this motion but I do see my colleague's point
of view and her arguments, and she does point out the fact that maybe we should look into, you
know, doing an assessment of how many, you know, these type businesses we predict will
happen to pop up in the future and maybe make arrangements in terms of, you know, formulating
a cap. Now that's something that we can look into but that's just my two cents. I do appreciate
my colleagues arguments though and statements. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. The Chair's recommendation is on the floor, any further discussion to
the motion on the floor? Seeing none, all in favor, please signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR CARROLL: That's one no, and one, two, three, five ayes. Motion passes.
MS. NAKATA: Excuse me, Mr. Chair, I think that's six ayes.
CHAIR CARROLL: I'm sorry.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Six ayes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Six ayes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You gotta count yourself, too.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes, six. I am sorry. . . (laughter). . . Well, you know it's getting late when we
can't count to six. Okay. Thank you. And thank you to the applicant for being with us today.
VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carron, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Couch, Victorino, and White.
NOES: Councilmember Cochran.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Crivello and Hokama.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending FIRST READING of revised bill and
FILING of communication.

CHAIR CARROLL: We have the last thing on the agenda today, LU-15 Unfulfilled Conditions of
Zoning and Annual Compliance Reports.
ITEM NO. 15: UNFULFILLED CONDITIONS OF ZONING AND ANNUAL
COMPLIANCE REPORTS (CC 13-282)

CHAIR CARROLL: The Committee is in receipt of County Communication 13-282 from
Councilmember Don Couch, Donald Couch, Jr., relating to required notification of the Council,
to the Council, of an unfulfilled conditions of zoning and the imposition of annual compliance
reports as conditions of zoning. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and appreciate you bringing this up. This came
from a discussion we had in the Planning Committee. There was an item in the Planning
Committee that requested that every condition of zoning have a condition that says there is an
annual compliance report, and it was discussed there that said, with the Department especially,
they said that there's a lot of Change in Zonings that we do that are routine and don't have
issues. That they're one-offs and whatnot that would be not conducive to the Department to do a
lot of annual report verifications, and then each one of those would have to come to here. But
what the concerns of the Committee was that, you know, if there is either a controversial Change
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in Zoning or one that's very complicated, for instance Makena. Very complicated Change in
Zoning. We had a less controversial one couple of meetings ago that it was, everybody passed
and everything was fine. For the noncontroversial ones and the smaller ones, no need to report,
but the suggestion of the Committee was to encourage this Committee to take a look at if there
are some controversial conditions that we really want reporting on to remind them that we can
add that condition if necessary on that. I think that goes along with what Mr. Spence was
mentioning at the Planning Committee meeting. So I just wanted to bring that up as a reminder.
The Committee asked me to discuss it with you as far as getting, if there's something
controversial or a huge project, then let's do annual reports but, annual compliance report, but
other than that, no need to do it on every Change in Zoning.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you for bringing it up, Mr. Couch. It's a concern of every Council member
and the general public and everybody else. The Chair has looked at this and considered the
options that you talked about and trying to have some boilerplate things that we can plug in
easily pertaining, not just one thing, but pertaining to the specifics of what the application is and
what would be appropriate. So the Chair will be working on that so that when we do have these
applications, we can have something that--and this is really, really more difficult than anybody
believes--something that is enforceable, something that the reporting will be reasonable and
something that will be effective, and obviously this is not easy or we would have been doing it
for a long time. We have a lot of things on there. We have requests for follow-ups and what,
and sometimes it works well and sometimes it doesn't. So the Chair will be reviewing that and
trying to come up with something that will be acceptable to the Committee whenever we have,
whenever it's appropriate when we have a zoning application. Any further discussion on that?
Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you for those comments and thank you very much for hearing
this.
CHAIR CARROLL: Okay. Since the Chair will be doing this and it falls under, you know, the Land
Use Committee, I would ask for a motion to file County Communication 13-282.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So moved.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved and seconded. Discussion? All in favor of the motion, please signify
by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried, six ayes, no noes.
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Couch, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councihnembers Cochran, Crivello, and Hokama.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending FILING of communication.

CHAIR CARROLL: Members, we have come to the end of our agenda for today. I thank you so much
for being with us and to all those that we had in the audience and out there in television land.
Thank you for being with us today. This Land Use Committee meeting of October 16, 2013
stands adjourned. . . .(gavel). . .
ADJOURN: 3:31 p.m.
APPROVED:
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ROBERT CARROLL, CHAIR
Land Use Committee
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